
Town of West Yellowstone 
Tuesday, February 18, 2014 

West Yellowstone Town Hall, 440 Yellowstone Avenue 
Town Council Meeting 

7:00 PM 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Purchase Orders   
Treasurer’s Report   
Claims ∞ 
Consent Agenda: February 18, 2014 Town Council Meeting ∞ 
   Securities/Cash Report ∞ 
Business License Applications  
Advisory Board Report(s) 
Operations Manager & Department Head Reports 
Assignments Report 
Council Comments 
Public Comment Period 
 
Presentation: US Forest Service, Acquisition of Forest Service Lands ∞ 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Management of Union Pacific Dining Lodge by Yellowstone Historic Center ∞  Discussion/Action 
 
Police Commission Applicant Evaluation Process ∞      Discussion/Action 
 
Letter of Support, Lift Deed Restrictions at Yellowstone Airport ∞    Discussion/Action 
 
WY Chamber of Commerce Lease Renewals       Discussion/Action 
 Groomer Shed Lease ∞ 
 Trailhead Building Lease ∞ 

 
WY Chamber of Commerce Request to be Exempted from Resort Tax Collections ∞ Discussion/Action 
 
Correspondence/FYI   
 Boards & Committee Appointments Summary ∞ 
 911 Advisory Board Announcement & Invitation Letter ∞ 
 WYSEF Letter of Support ∞ 
 National Smokejumper Center Letter of Support ∞ 

Meeting Reminders 
Adjournment 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Policy No. 16 (Abbreviated) 
  Policy on Public Hearings and Conduct at Public Meetings  

 
Public Hearing/Public Meeting 
A public hearing is a formal opportunity for citizens to give their views to the Town Council for consideration 
in its decision making process on a specific issue.  At a minimum, a public hearing shall provide for submission 
of both oral and written testimony for and against the action or matter at issue.   
 
Oral Communication 
It is the Council’s goal that citizens resolve their complaints for service or regarding employees’ performance 
at the staff level.  However, it is recognized that citizens may from time to time believe it is necessary to speak 
to Town Council on matters of concern.  Accordingly, Town Council expects any citizen to speak in a civil 
manner, with due respect for the decorum of the meeting, and with due respect for all persons attending.  

• No member of the public shall be heard until recognized by the presiding officer. 
• Public comments related to non-agenda items will only be heard during the Public Comment portion of 

the meeting unless the issue is a Public Hearing.  Public comments specifically related to an agenda item 
will be heard immediately prior to the Council taking up the item for deliberation. 

• Speakers must state their name for the record. 
• Any citizen requesting to speak shall limit him or herself to matters of fact regarding the issue of 

concern. 
• Comments should be limited to three (3) minutes unless prior approval by the presiding officer. 
• If a representative is elected to speak for a group, the presiding officer may approve an increased time 

allotment. 
• If a response from the Council or Board is requested by the speaker and cannot be made verbally at the 

Council or Board meeting, the speaker’s concerns should be addressed in writing within two weeks. 
• Personal attacks made publicly toward any citizen, council member, or town employees are not allowed.  

Citizens are encouraged to bring their complaints regarding employee performance through the 
supervisory chain of command.  

Any member of the public interrupting Town Council proceedings, approaching the dais without permission, 
otherwise creating a disturbance, or failing to abide by these rules of procedure in addressing Town Council, 
shall be deemed to have disrupted a public meeting and, at the direction of the presiding officer, shall be 
removed from the meeting room by Police Department personnel or other agent designated by Town Council or 
Operations Manager.  
 
General Town Council Meeting Information 

• Regular Town Council meetings are held at 7:00 PM on the first and third Tuesdays of each month at the 
Povah Community Center located at 10 S. Geyser Street.  

• Presently, informal Town Council work sessions are held at 7:30 AM on the first and third Tuesdays of 
each month and occasionally on other mornings and evenings.  Work sessions also take place at the 
Povah Community Center located at 10 S. Geyser Street 

• The schedule for Town Council meetings and work sessions is detailed on an agenda.  The agenda is a 
list of business items to be considered at a meeting.  Copies of agendas are available at the entrance to 
the meeting room. 

• Agendas are always published at least 48 hours prior to Town Council meetings and work sessions.  
Agendas are posted at the Town Offices and at the Post Office.  In addition, agendas are available online 
at the Town’s website: www.townofwestyellowstone.com. Questions about the agenda may be directed 
to the Town Clerk at 646-7795. 

• Official minutes of Town Council meetings are prepared and kept by the Town Clerk and are reviewed 
and approved by the Town Council.  Copies of approved minutes are available at the Town Clerk’s 
office or on the Town’s website: www.townofwestyellowstone.com.   

 
Adopted November 3, 2010, a complete copy of this policy is available at the Town Offices.   



02/14/14                                              TOWN OF WEST YELLOWSTONE                                  Page: 1 of 7
15:44:48                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  2/14

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim                      Vendor #/Name/            Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
        Check   Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                           PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 39624           2204 Republic Services                      483.39
        01/28/14 dumpster lease  police                    240.73                    POLICE     1000     411258    534       101000
        02/28/14 Chamber dumpster                            0.00                     CHAMB     1000     411257    534       101000
        01/28/14 dumpster lease/shop                       242.66*                     PARK     1000     460430    534       101000

 39625            146 Morrison-Maierle, Inc                  130.00
       17640 02/08/14 PD online backup                      70.00                    DISPAT     1000     420160    355       101000
       17641 02/08/14 Town Offices online backup            60.00                    FINADM     1000     410510    356       101000

 39626            266 Utilities Underground Location           3.64
       4015286 01/31/14 excavation notifications             1.82                     WATER     5210     430500    357       101000
       4015286 01/31/14 excavation notifications             1.82                     SEWER     5310     430600    357       101000

 39627           2789 WEX Bank                             7,793.32
       32207793 02/01/14 07 Ford Expedition                191.45                        SS     1000     450135    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 14 Ford Interceptor                 0.00                    POLICE     1000     420100    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 10 Ford Crown Vic 6-34157A        153.90                    POLICE     1000     420100    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 08 Ford Crown Vic 6-1437          300.17                    POLICE     1000     420100    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 10 Ford Expedition                522.41                    POLICE     1000     420100    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 11 Ford Expedition 6-21425A       518.83                    POLICE     1000     420100    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 77 Intl Dumptruck                   0.00                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 78 Chevy Dumptruck                  0.00                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 78 Autocar Dumptruck                0.00                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 85 Ford Dumptruck                   0.00                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 140 G Grader                    1,284.51                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 CAT 936 Loader                  1,082.97                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 91 Ford Pickup                      0.00                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 95 Mobile Sweeper                   0.00                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 97 Athey Sweeper                    0.00                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 99 SS Snowblower                  991.40                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 00 Freightliner Dump  6-6070      992.95                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 Snowmobile                          0.00                    STREET     1000     420100    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 02 Freightliner Dump 6-54564      642.30                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 08 Ford Pickup 6-1450             444.26                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 08 GMC Pickup 6-1484               89.52                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 08 CAT 938H Loader                144.46                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 08 904B MiniLoader                375.75                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 YNP Truck #1                        0.00                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 YNP Truck #2                        0.00                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 08 Ford Escape (multi-use)         58.44                    DISPAT     1000     420100    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 93 Dodge Pickup 6-2010              0.00                    STREET     1000     460430    231       101000
       32207793 02/01/14 Kubota Tractor                      0.00                     PARKS     1000     460430    231       101000



02/14/14                                              TOWN OF WEST YELLOWSTONE                                  Page: 2 of 7
15:44:48                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  2/14

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim                      Vendor #/Name/            Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
        Check   Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                           PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 39628           2558 Hebgen Basin Fire District          43,143.00
        02/15/14 February 2014                          43,143.00                      FIRE     1000     420400    357       101000

 39629           2088 Town West Yellowstone                  433.61
        02/01/14 utility chrgs, Chamber, 895                31.22                     BLDGS     1000     411257    340       101000
        02/01/14 utility chrgs, UPDL, 892                   51.36                     BLDGS     1000     411252    340       101000
        02/01/14 utility chrgs, PS Shops, 884               23.70                     BLDGS     1000     411253    340       101000
        02/01/14 utility chrgs. Povah Ctr, 887              48.18                     BLDGS     1000     411255    340       101000
        02/01/14 utility chrgs, Police Dept,886             30.42*                    BLDGS     1000     411258    340       101000
        02/01/14 utility chrgs, City Park, 885             125.99                     BLDGS     1000     411253    340       101000
        02/01/14 utility chrgs, Library, 891                23.93                    LIBRAR     2220     460120    340       101000
        02/01/14 utility chrgs, Lift #1, 903                10.16                     SEWER     5310     430600    340       101000
        02/01/14 utility chrgs, Twn Hall, 921               88.65                    TWNHAL     1000     411250    340       101000

 39630           2716 CenturyLink                          2,845.76
        12/19/13 DSL Povah, 646-7982                        56.25                     POVAH     1000     411255    345       101000
        12/19/13 DSL Fire/Town Hall 646-7962               -59.73*                   STREET     1000     411254    345       101000
        12/19/13 DSL Library, 646-7953                      77.20                    LIBRAR     2220     460100    345       101000
        12/19/13 DLS Police 646-0231                        71.25                    POLICE     1000     420110    345       101000
        12/19/13 DSL Sod Serv 646-7951                     -24.75                    SOCSER     1000     450135    345       101000
        12/19/13 DSL Pub Serv Office 646-7949               76.27                    BLDINS     1000     430200    345       101000
        12/19/13 Sewer Treat 646-9027                       38.25                    STREET     5310     430600    345       101000
        12/19/13 Sewer lift 646-5141                        37.64                     SEWER     5310     430600    345       101000
        12/19/13 Fire Call Box 646-7273                     37.64*                     FIRE     1000     411254    345       101000
        12/19/13 PCC Elevator 646-7481                      41.62                     POVAH     1000     411255    345       101000
        12/19/13 Centrex Finance - 20%                     273.58                    FINADM     1000     410510    345       101000
        12/19/13 Centrex, Police-20%                       273.58                    POLICE     1000     420110    345       101000
        12/19/13 Centrex, Soc Ser -10%                     136.79                    SOCSER     1000     450135    345       101000
        12/19/13 Centrex, Court - 10%                      136.79                     COURT     1000     410360    345       101000
        12/19/13 Centrex, Bld Ins - 10%                    136.79                    BLDINS     1000     430200    345       101000
        12/19/13 Centrex, Street - 10%                     136.79                    STREET     1000     430200    345       101000
        12/19/13 Centrex, PCC - 10%                        136.79                     POVAH     1000     411255    345       101000
        12/19/13 Centrex, Lib                              136.80                     COURT     2220     460100    345       101000
        12/19/13 E911 Viper 646-5170                        98.49                      E911     2850     420750    345       101000
        12/19/13 E911 255-9710                             995.96                      E911     2850     420750    345       101000
        12/19/13 E911 255-9712                              31.76                      E911     2850     420750    345       101000

 39633             95 Energy West-Montana                  2,997.85
        01/30/14 nat gas - 62211 - updh                    206.19                      UPDH     1000     411252    344       101000
        01/30/14 nat gas - 62017 - police sta.              20.77                    POLICE     1000     411258    344       101000
        01/30/14 nat gas - 12204-pub.svcs                   27.64                    STREET     1000     430200    344       101000
        01/30/14 nat gas - 62214- old firehall              18.00                      PARK     1000     460430    344       101000
        01/30/14 nat gas - 01603 - Bldg. Dept.             143.45                    INSPET     1000     420531    344       101000
        01/30/14 nat gas - 61962 - library                 344.72                    LIBRAR     2220     460120    344       101000
        01/30/14 nat gas - 07154 - Povah  Ctr.             634.66                     POVAH     1000     411255    344       101000
        01/30/14 nat gas - 62207 - pub svcs                694.98                    PUBSVC     1000     430200    344       101000



02/14/14                                              TOWN OF WEST YELLOWSTONE                                  Page: 3 of 7
15:44:48                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  2/14

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim                      Vendor #/Name/            Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
        Check   Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                           PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
        01/30/14 nat gas -17279 -Town Hall                 875.62                    TWNHAL     1000     411250    344       101000
        01/30/14 nat gas -17569-Sewer Lift                  31.82                     SEWER     5310     430600    344       101000

 39672           2673 First Bankcard                       2,540.91
        01/02/14 BATTERIES.ASAP.COM                         24.95                      UPDL     1000     411252    366       101000
        01/21/14 BLIND GUY                               2,450.00*                   TWNHAL     1000     411250    364       101000
        01/16/14 HOME DEPOT                                 65.96                     PARKS     1000     460430    220       101000

 39673           2291 American Express                       298.96
        01/22/14 USPS water samples                         33.05*                    WATER     5210     430500    311       101000
        01/28/14 Costco, pictures                           16.00*                   TWNHAL     1000     411250    364       101000
        01/30/14 B & N , e-book                              0.94                       LIB     2220     460100    215       101000
        02/04/14 BUYLIFETIME.com, tables                   374.95*                      LIB     2220     460100    220       101000
        01/28/14 Costco, refund pictures                  -125.98*                   TWNHAL     1000     411250    364       101000

 39674           2673 First Bankcard                         857.87
        01/02/14 USPS, water samples                        22.95*                    WATER     5210     430500    311       101000
        01/06/14 WicklanderZulawski, training              450.00                    POLICE     1000     420100    380       101000
        01/15/14 City Center, BZN travel                   384.92                    POLICE     1000     420100    370       101000

 39675           2716 CenturyLink                          2,883.15
 January bill was mailed to Library and not received in office until
 mid-February.  Centurylink bill therefore wasn't paid in January but there are

 two payments in February. er
        01/19/14 DSL Povah, 646-7982                        56.25                     POVAH     1000     411255    345       101000
        01/19/14 DSL 646-7962                                7.25*                   STREET     1000     411254    345       101000
        01/19/14 DSL Library, 646-7953                      77.20                    LIBRAR     2220     460100    345       101000
        01/19/14 DLS Police 646-0231                        71.25                    POLICE     1000     420110    345       101000
        01/19/14 DSL 646-7951                                7.25                    SOCSER     1000     450135    345       101000
        01/19/14 DSL Pub Serv Office 646-7949               71.25                    BLDINS     1000     430200    345       101000
        01/19/14 Sewer Treat 646-9027                       38.34                    STREET     5310     430600    345       101000
        01/19/14 Sewer lift 646-5141                        37.70                     SEWER     5310     430600    345       101000
        01/19/14 Fire Call Box 646-7273                     37.70*                     FIRE     1000     411254    345       101000
        01/19/14 PCC Elevator 646-7481                      41.81                     POVAH     1000     411255    345       101000
        01/19/14 Centrex Finance - 20%                     262.12                    FINADM     1000     410510    345       101000
        01/19/14 Centrex, Police-20%                       262.12                    POLICE     1000     420110    345       101000
        01/19/14 Centrex, Soc Ser -10%                     131.04                    SOCSER     1000     450135    345       101000
        01/19/14 Centrex, Court - 10%                      131.06                     COURT     1000     410360    345       101000
        01/19/14 Centrex, Bld Ins - 10%                    131.06                    BLDINS     1000     430200    345       101000
        01/19/14 Centrex, Street - 10%                     131.06                    STREET     1000     430200    345       101000
        01/19/14 Centrex, PCC - 10%                        131.06                     POVAH     1000     411255    345       101000
        01/19/14 Centrex, Lib                              131.06                     COURT     2220     460100    345       101000
        01/19/14 E911 Viper 646-5170                        98.67                      E911     2850     420750    345       101000
        01/19/14 E911 255-9710                             996.14                      E911     2850     420750    345       101000
        01/19/14 E911 255-9712                              31.76                      E911     2850     420750    345       101000



02/14/14                                              TOWN OF WEST YELLOWSTONE                                  Page: 4 of 7
15:44:48                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  2/14

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim                      Vendor #/Name/            Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
        Check   Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                           PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 39676             29 Terrell's Office Machines Inc          145.00
       277505 02/10/14 restore scanning function           145.00                    FINADM     1000     410510    356       101000

 39677            130 Great Northern Hotel                   190.32
        02/10/14 motel room, Helena-Hanna                  190.32                     COURT     1000     410360    370       101000

 39678            324 Joyce Berger                           200.50
        02/10/14 travel, training Helena                   200.50                     COURT     1000     410360    370       101000

 39679            191 Demco                                  489.19
       5199199 01/31/14 supplies                           489.19*                      LIB     2220     460100    220       101000

 39680           2850 Columbia Falls City Court               25.00
        02/10/14 clerk school regis, spring 14              25.00                     COURT     1000     410360    335       101000

 39681           2162 Holiday Inn                             90.75
       10000769 02/06/14 refreshments, law training         90.75                    POLICE     1000     420100    361       101000

 39682            135 Food Roundup                            37.40
        02/01/14 supplies                                   37.40                    SOCSER     1000     450135    220       101000

 39683           2473 Pioneer Human Services                  49.16
       32907 01/30/14 commodities                           49.16                      HELP     7010     450135    220       101000

 39684            725 Swan Cleaners                           75.00
       1152 02/05/14 jail laundry                           75.00                      JAIL     1000     420230    390       101000

 39685           2200 Kevin Conlon                           138.00
        02/10/14 travel, training in Boise                 138.00                    POLICE     1000     420100    370       101000

 39686         999999 MICHELLE SANTIAGO, USDA NFC             51.36
        02/10/14 refund overpmt                             25.68*                    WATER     5210     430570    359       101000
        02/14/10 refund overpmt                             25.68                     SEWER     5310     430670    355       101000

 39687           1140 Sagebrush Floral                        21.50
       332884 01/01/14 greens barre;                        21.50*                      LIB     2220     460100    220       101000

 39688            489 MSE ANALYTICAL LABORATORY              405.00
       1401087 01/31/14 h20 Samples                        207.00                     WATER     5210     430500    357       101000
       1308089 08/29/13 h20 Samples                        198.00                     WATER     5210     430500    357       101000



02/14/14                                              TOWN OF WEST YELLOWSTONE                                  Page: 5 of 7
15:44:48                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  2/14

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim                      Vendor #/Name/            Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
        Check   Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                           PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 39689           2813 Century Link                            62.18
        01/28/14 fire/alarm lines Town Hall                 62.18                    TWNHAL     1000     411250    345       101000

 39690           2421 NAPA Auto Parts                      1,648.49
        01/31/14 automotive supplied                        36.95                    POLICE     1000     420100    361       101000
        01/31/14 automotive supplied                     1,611.54                    STREET     1000     430200    369       101000

 39691            151 WY Hebgen Basin Refuse District         51.65
        01/31/14 transfer station charges                   51.65*                    PARKS     1000     460430    534       101000

 39692             65 Tractor & Equipment Co               4,747.59
        01/29/14 repairs to 938H Loader                  5,041.48                    STREET     1000     430200    357       101000
 BLW00144883
        01/02/14 parts return                             -659.86                    STREET     1000     430200    369       101000
        01/15/14 parts                                     213.09                    STREET     1000     430200    220       101000
 42CS0411341
        01/28/14 parts                                     152.88                    STREET     1000     430200    369       101000
 42CS0411469

 39693            764 General Distributing Co.                39.37
       201716 01/31/14 compressed O2                        39.37                    STREET     1000     430200    220       101000

 39694            254 Firehole Fill Up/Economart           1,351.95
        01/31/14 fuel                                    1,351.95                    STREET     1000     430200    231       101000

 39695           1311 Teton Communications                 2,277.10
       125951 12/31/13 5 new Kenwood radios + setup      2,277.10                    STREET     1000     430200    362       101000

 39696           2764 HD Supply Waterworks, Ltd.              52.98
       C007410 01/31/14 water supplies                      35.32                     WATER     5210     430500    369       101000
       B993325 01/29/14 water supplies                      17.66                     WATER     5210     430500    369       101000

 39697             40 Jerry's Enterprises                     38.69
        01/28/14 help fund fuel                             38.69                      HELP     7010     450135    231       101000

 39698           2654 Community Health Partners               10.00
       010213/01 01/02/14 help fund visit                   10.00                      HELP     7010     450135    351       101000

 39699           2835 Corner Cenex                            25.00
       122313/01 01/31/14 help fund fuel                    25.00                      HELP     7010     450135    231       101000



02/14/14                                              TOWN OF WEST YELLOWSTONE                                  Page: 6 of 7
15:44:48                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  2/14

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim                      Vendor #/Name/            Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
        Check   Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                           PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

 39700            135 Food Roundup                            37.97
        02/01/14 supplies                                   37.97                    STREET     1000     430200    220       101000

 39701            533 Market Place                           250.00
        01/31/14 5 Xmas gift certs                         250.00                     LEGIS     1000     410100    220       101000

 39702           2540 Centennial Auto Repair                  38.73
       9526 01/31/14 08 Ford CV, turn signal                38.73                    POLICE     1000     420100    361       101000

 39703           2099 Quick Print of West Yellowstone         31.80
       4299 10/03/13 lib printing                            4.45*                      LIB     2220     460100    220       101000
       4653 10/21/13 lib printing                           14.25*                      LIB     2220     460100    220       101000
       4645 01/21/14 shipping                               13.10                    POLICE     1000     420110    311       101000

 39704           2586 Waxie Sanitary Supply                   28.20
       74417060 02/07/14 mop heads                          28.20                     PARKS     1000     460430    220       101000

 39705           2851 Amatics CPA Group                    7,600.00
       26577 01/31/14 FY 12-13 audit work thru 1/31/     7,600.00                     AUDIT     1000     410530    353       101000

 39706           2601 Chemnet Consortium, Inc.               100.00
       77804 01/28/14 annual random select fee             100.00                     ADMIN     1000     410210    351       101000

                           # of Claims    43    Total:     84,721.34

                                                           84,721.34



02/14/14                                              TOWN OF WEST YELLOWSTONE                                  Page: 7 of 7
15:44:48                                              Fund Summary for Claims                              Report ID: AP110
                                                 For the Accounting Period:  2/14

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
              Fund/Account                                 Amount
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
 1000 General Fund
   101000 CASH                                              $79,886.63
 2220 Library
   101000 CASH                                               $1,696.19
 2850 911 Emergency
   101000 CASH                                               $2,252.78
 5210 Water Operating Fund
   101000 CASH                                                 $541.48
 5310 Sewer Operating Fund
   101000 CASH                                                 $221.41
 7010 Social Services/Help Fund
   101000 CASH                                                 $122.85

                                               Total:       $84,721.34



WEST YELLOWSTONE TOWN COUNCIL 
Town Council Meeting 

February 4, 2014 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Brad Schmier, Jerry Johnson, John Costello, Cole 
Parker, Greg Forsythe 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Operations Manager Becky Guay, Finance Director Lanie Gospodarek,  
Chief of Police Gordon Berger, Public Services Superintendent James Patterson, Social Services 
Director Jack Dittmann, Hebgen Basin Fire Chief Scott Waldron, Assistant Fire Chief Shane 
Grube, Montana Highway Patrolman Marcus Cook, Sheriff Deputy Matt Stubblefield, Brenda 
Martin, Sandi Peppler, Grace McCoy, West Yellowstone News Editor, Tom Cherhoniak, 
Yellowstone National Park Deputies Les Brunton and Julie Hannaford, Assistant Public Services 
Superintendent David Arnado, Public Services Employee Kurtis Holtzen 
 
The meeting is called to order by Mayor Brad Schmier at 7:00 PM in the Povah Community 
Center 
 
Portions of the meeting are being recorded. 
 
The Treasurer’s Report with corresponding banking transactions is on file at the Town Offices 
for public review during regular business hours. 
 
ACTION TAKEN 
 
1) Motion carried to approve the claims which total $110,210.18.  (Costello, Parker) 
 
2) Motion carried to approve the Consent Agenda which includes the minutes of the January 

21, 2014 Town Council Meeting. (Forsythe, Costello) 
 
3) Motion carried to approve the new location for Yellowstone Bicycles made by Les 

McBirnie to move from his current location on Madison Avenue to 21 North Canyon 
Street. (Forsythe, Parker) 

 
4) Motion carried to approve Resolution No. 644 as written, a resolution that establishes a 

911 advisory board. (Johnson, Forsythe) 
   
5) Motion carried to appoint John Costello to represent the Town Council on the 911 

Advisory Board. (Johnson, Parker) 
 
Council Comments 
Parker says he attended the community benefit soup dinner for Mac Graham last night and asks 
Grace McCoy how it actually turned out.  McCoy answers that they had approximately 350 
people come out and they raised just over $3500 for the Grahams.   
 
Forsythe says that he asked the Finance Director to total up the final cost for the Town Hall 
because he had concerns that the public was being misled by the statement at a previous meeting 
that the building came in under budget.  The Town anticipated borrowing $1.6 million to build 
the building but only needed to borrow $1.48 million.  Gospodarek added in all the other costs, 
which included architecture and engineering services, construction manager costs, landscaping, 
furnishings, fees, etc. and came to a grand total of $1,794,994.20 for a total building cost, which 
was $84,390.80 less than the budgeted project cost of $1,879,385.   
 
Public Comment Period 
No public comment is received. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



February 4, 2014 
Town Council Meeting 
Minutes, Page 2 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
1) Parker asks about training for Officer Courtis.  Forsythe asks about the debt service 

payments for the 911 Dispatch Center and the first payment for the Town Hall. 
 
 
4) Mayor Schmier reads Resolution No. 644, a resolution that establishes a 911 advisory 

board.  The Council discusses the resolution and specifically the membership of the board 
and which entities should be represented.  The Council questions whether it is necessary 
to include representatives from the trail groomers and a wrecker service.  They consider 
including a representative from Search & Rescue.  Hebgen Basin Fire District Chief Scott 
Waldron reports that he did forward this draft to most of the agencies that are listed.  He 
said he also previously talked to Jason Pond on behalf of Search & Rescue and he was 
comfortable being represented by the Gallatin County Sheriff’s Department.  Hannaford 
of Yellowstone National Park points out that there are no dispatchers on the board and 
thinks that is a glaring omission.  Waldron says that the dispatchers are typically the staff 
support for a 911 advisory board and that is who will organize the meetings.  Guay agrees 
with Waldron.  Berger says that he assumed the representative from the Police 
Department would be a dispatcher but they haven’t actually talked about it.  Costello asks 
if it is redundant to have the Operations Manager and a Council Member on the board.  
The Council considers whether it is necessary but agrees that it has been past practice to 
have a Council Member on most of the advisory boards.  Guay points out that having a 
council member on the board makes communication and reporting to the council more 
effective.  The Council considers adding a representative from the Department of 
Livestock and a dispatcher.  They also consider not including representatives from the 
trail groomers and a wrecker service.  Waldron says that he doesn’t see any problem with 
including everyone and that after the first month or two, the participation will drop off 
and some will only attend meetings when there is something that affects them on the 
agenda.  They ultimately agree not to make any changes and leave the resolution as 
written. 

 
5) Costello agrees to serve on the board on behalf of the Town Council on the condition that 

they don’t appoint him to any other boards or committee as he is “meetinged out.”   
 
A) Advisory Board Reports:  Johnson reports that he got a call from Debbie Alke of the 

Montana Aeronautics Division and she is sending a draft letter for the Airport Advisory 
Board and the Town Council to consider signing that asks the US Forest Service to lift 
the deed restrictions on the airport property.  He also reports that the Clothing Bank Ad 
Hoc Committee has met twice and is working towards a solution for the location of the 
clothing bank.   

 
B) Operations Manager Report:  Operations Manager Becky Guay reports on current 

issues:  Dance Program – Katie Ostberg has agreed to teach clogging classes to various 
age groups as part of the Town’s Recreation Program.  Our Recreation Coordinator, 
Brandy Holland, and Ms. Ostberg are holding an open house this evening to gauge 
interest and answer questions.  We will be charging $35 for the clogging program.  We 
are issuing refunds (on the claims list tonight) to those that have paid for the cancelled 
dance program.  Police Officer Hiring Process – The Police Commission has developed 
a first draft of procedures that will be used to evaluate police officer candidates and have 
asked the Town Attorney to clarify some issues about the application of open meeting 
statutes to the hiring process.  The Commission will meet again this week or next to 
complete the procedures.  Dispatch User’s Group – Resolution is on the Council agenda 
this evening.  Finance Department – The audit went well last week.  Lanie and I will be 
meeting with them shortly to review the findings.  Management of UPDL – YHC has 
submitted their proposal to take over the management of the UPDL.  We met with YHC 
yesterday to discuss the proposal and have forwarded to Councilmembers for review.  
This item will be placed on the February 18 Council agenda for discussion/action, unless 
the Council wishes to schedule a work session prior to taking action.  Meeting with  



February 4, 2014 
Town Council Meeting 
Minutes, Page 3 
 

HBFD – Town staff met with the Chief and Assistant Chief of HBFD today to discuss 
protective custody and transport issues, staffing, and police and emergency services.  The 
Fire Chief and I will work cooperatively to develop and implement protocols to address 
transport of persons placed under protective custody and the safety of EMS responders.  
Meeting to Discuss Mental Health/Protective Custody Issues – We met with 
representatives from the Gallatin County Sheriff’s Office, Western Montana Mental 
Health, Hope House and the Emergency Department at Bozeman Deaconess Hospital to 
discuss the challenges posed when the West Yellowstone PD transports people to either 
the Emergency Room or Hope House and it takes many hours to medically clear and/or 
obtain a mental health assessment by a Mental Health Professional.  The group agreed to 
work together to address these issues so that Town police officers can return to West 
Yellowstone in a timely manner.  2014 Montana Executive Academy – I am planning to 
attend this training for Montana Mayors and City Managers sponsored by MMIA and the 
Local Government Center in Bozeman on March 5-7.  Clothing Bank Committee – The 
Committee is meeting every Tuesday to develop recommendations for the Town Council 
regarding the future of the clothing bank.   

 
 Forsythe questions why Guay didn’t take the Social Services Director or Police Chief or 

Sergeant with her to the meeting in Bozeman with Gallatin County Mental Health.  Guay 
responds that they were all attending domestic violence training that day and she did not 
want to reschedule the meeting as it had been scheduled for several weeks. 

 
The meeting is adjourned. (8:15 PM) 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Town Clerk 
 





02/14/14                                              TOWN OF WEST YELLOWSTONE                                  Page: 1 of 3
09:29:45                                                    Cash Report                                    Report ID: L160
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  1/14

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
                                              Beginning                    Transfers                     Transfers       Ending
        Fund/Account                           Balance       Received         In          Disbursed         Out          Balance
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
1000  General Fund
   101000 CASH                                 173,006.25     128,833.33         712.43           0.00     301,253.62       1,298.39
   101100 Investments - CD's                   211,783.14           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00     211,783.14
   101300 Investments - Money Market Accou     539,241.28          95.38           0.00      30,000.00           0.00     509,336.66
   101500 Investment-STIP                      559,404.33         110.24           0.00           0.00           0.00     559,514.57
   103000 Petty Cash                                50.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00          50.00
   103100 Town Office                               50.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00          50.00
   103200 Petty Cash/WY Police Dept                 50.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00          50.00
   103400 Petty Cash-Recreation                    150.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00         150.00
                      Total Fund             1,483,735.00     129,038.95         712.43      30,000.00     301,253.62   1,282,232.76
2100  Local Option Taxation-Resort Tax
   101000 CASH                                     531.36      99,981.17           0.00      83,893.50       1,500.00      15,119.03
   101300 Investments - Money Market Accou     230,607.43          43.19           0.00           0.00           0.00     230,650.62
   101500 Investment-STIP                       66,757.00           0.00           0.00      14,237.00           0.00      52,520.00
   102001 Construnction Acct Town Hall              13.83           0.01           0.00           0.00           0.00          13.84
   102200  Bond Reserve Cash Acct-10%           12,326.19           0.49           0.00           0.00           0.00      12,326.68
   102215 STIP Investment-Rev Bond current     114,051.16      14,251.64           0.00           0.00           0.00     128,302.80
   102225 STIP Reserve Acct Town Hall 10%      135,811.20          17.44           0.00           0.00           0.00     135,828.64
                      Total Fund               560,098.17     114,293.94                     98,130.50       1,500.00     574,761.61
2101  Marketing & Promotions (MAP)
   101000 CASH                                   5,277.59       2,372.00           0.00           0.00       2,500.00       5,149.59
   101300 Investments - Money Market Accou      10,004.89           1.88           0.00           0.00           0.00      10,006.77
   101500 Investment-STIP                       71,000.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00      71,000.00
                      Total Fund                86,282.48       2,373.88                                     2,500.00      86,156.36
2102  TBID (Tourism Business Improvement District)
   101000 CASH                                   4,750.05       6,089.92           0.00         182.70       4,778.21       5,879.06
2111  Off Street Parking
   101000 CASH                                     860.37           0.03           0.00           0.00           0.00         860.40
   101500 Investment-STIP                       68,641.77           8.81           0.00           0.00           0.00      68,650.58
                      Total Fund                69,502.14           8.84                                                   69,510.98
2210  Parks & Recreation
   101000 CASH                                   7,057.11       1,100.00           0.00           0.00       1,050.00       7,107.11
2211  Parks/Rec Donations - Teen Center
   101000 CASH                                     656.65           0.03           0.00           0.00           0.00         656.68
2212  Parks - Volleyball Court
   101000 CASH                                   3,881.69           0.15           0.00           0.00           0.00       3,881.84
2213  Community Garden
   101000 CASH                                     437.49           0.02           0.00           0.00           0.00         437.51
2214  Smoking Waters Day Camp -scholarships
   101000 CASH                                   4,034.49           0.16           0.00           0.00           0.00       4,034.65
2220  Library
   101000 CASH                                  13,296.72       1,238.62           0.25           0.00       9,938.42       4,597.17
   103000 Petty Cash                                50.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00          50.00
                      Total Fund                13,346.72       1,238.62           0.25                      9,938.42       4,647.17
2240  Cemetery
   101000 CASH                                     727.34           0.03           0.00           0.00           0.00         727.37
   101500 Investment-STIP                       11,831.15           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00      11,831.15
                      Total Fund                12,558.49           0.03                                                   12,558.52



02/14/14                                              TOWN OF WEST YELLOWSTONE                                  Page: 2 of 3
09:29:45                                                    Cash Report                                    Report ID: L160
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  1/14

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
                                              Beginning                    Transfers                     Transfers       Ending
        Fund/Account                           Balance       Received         In          Disbursed         Out          Balance
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
2390  Drug Forfeiture
   101000 CASH                                   6,233.84           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00       6,233.84
   101500 Investment-STIP                       23,858.85           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00      23,858.85
                      Total Fund                30,092.69                                                                  30,092.69
2392  CDBG-Local Source
   101000 CASH                                   9,352.88         175.38           0.00           0.00           0.00       9,528.26
   101500 Investment-STIP                       68,822.72           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00      68,822.72
                      Total Fund                78,175.60         175.38                                                   78,350.98
2701  Cemetery Perpetual Care (7050)
   101000 CASH                                   1,566.50           0.06           0.00           0.00           0.00       1,566.56
   101500 Investment-STIP                       35,875.93           4.61           0.00           0.00           0.00      35,880.54
                      Total Fund                37,442.43           4.67                                                   37,447.10
2820  Gas Tax Apportionment
   101000 CASH                                  15,925.63       2,507.21           0.00           0.00           0.00      18,432.84
   101300 Investments - Money Market Accou      10,004.89           1.88           0.00           0.00           0.00      10,006.77
   101500 Investment-STIP                       56,963.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00      56,963.00
                      Total Fund                82,893.52       2,509.09                                                   85,402.61
2850  911 Emergency
   101000 CASH                                      46.89      38,572.05           0.00           0.00      14,849.01      23,769.93
   101500 Investment-STIP                       28,809.64           3.70           0.00           0.00           0.00      28,813.34
                      Total Fund                28,856.53      38,575.75                                    14,849.01      52,583.27
2917  Crime Victims Assistance
   101000 CASH                                  18,352.67           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00      18,352.67
3050  GO Bond
   101000 CASH                                  81,151.23       5,487.40           0.00      30,000.00           0.00      56,638.63
   101300 Investments - Money Market Accou      65,031.77      30,017.80           0.00           0.00           0.00      95,049.57
   101500 Investment-STIP                       47,599.45           6.11           0.00           0.00           0.00      47,605.56
                      Total Fund               193,782.45      35,511.31                     30,000.00                    199,293.76
4000  Capital Projects/Equipment
   101000 CASH                                  59,628.92           2.31           0.00           0.00       1,200.00      58,431.23
   101500 Investment-STIP                        8,528.93           1.09           0.00           0.00           0.00       8,530.02
                      Total Fund                68,157.85           3.40                                     1,200.00      66,961.25
4060  Public Works Equipment Replacement
   101500 Investment-STIP                          237.72           0.03           0.00           0.00           0.00         237.75
4070  Parkway Construction/Mtn
   101000 CASH                                  98,664.20           0.85           0.00      77,326.88           0.00      21,338.17
   101300 Investments - Money Market Accou      40,019.55      77,348.86           0.00           0.00           0.00     117,368.41
   101500 Investment-STIP                       98,018.70          12.58           0.00           0.00           0.00      98,031.28
                      Total Fund               236,702.45      77,362.29                     77,326.88                    236,737.86
4075  Street Construction /Maintenance
   101500 Investment-STIP                      120,955.18          15.53           0.00           0.00           0.00     120,970.71
4401  Save American Treasurers Grant
   101000 CASH                                  11,963.73           0.47           0.00           0.00           0.00      11,964.20
   101500 Investment-STIP                           16.76           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00          16.76
                      Total Fund                11,980.49           0.47                                                   11,980.96
5210  Water Operating Fund
   101000 CASH                                  38,719.25      18,196.12           0.00           0.00      10,390.17      46,525.20
   101300 Investments - Money Market Accou      10,004.89           1.87           0.00           0.00           0.00      10,006.76



02/14/14                                              TOWN OF WEST YELLOWSTONE                                  Page: 3 of 3
09:29:45                                                    Cash Report                                    Report ID: L160
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  1/14

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
                                              Beginning                    Transfers                     Transfers       Ending
        Fund/Account                           Balance       Received         In          Disbursed         Out          Balance
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
   101500 Investment-STIP                      181,945.25          23.36           0.00           0.00           0.00     181,968.61
   102245 Replacement & Depreciation Ent.      148,501.28          19.07           0.00           0.00           0.00     148,520.35
                      Total Fund               379,170.67      18,240.42                                    10,390.17     387,020.92
5220  Water Replacement Depreciation Fund
   101500 Investment-STIP                      165,578.89          21.26           0.00           0.00           0.00     165,600.15
5310  Sewer Operating Fund
   101000 CASH                                  24,479.32      32,268.73          29.98           0.00       8,792.17      47,985.86
   101300 Investments - Money Market Accou      20,009.78           3.74           0.00           0.00           0.00      20,013.52
   101500 Investment-STIP                      390,488.89          50.13           0.00           0.00           0.00     390,539.02
   101510 Mad Add Construction-STIP             60,405.04           7.76           0.00           0.00           0.00      60,412.80
   102245 Replacement & Depreciation Ent.      129,744.76          16.66           0.00           0.00           0.00     129,761.42
                      Total Fund               625,127.79      32,347.02          29.98                      8,792.17     648,712.62
5320  Sewer Replacement Depreciation Fund
   101500 Investment-STIP                      199,857.89          25.66           0.00           0.00           0.00     199,883.55
7010  Social Services/Help Fund
   101000 CASH                                  23,377.05         197.20           0.00           0.00         730.94      22,843.31
7195  Court Collections Trust Acct
   101000 CASH                                  11,806.49           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00      11,806.49
7458  Court Surcharge HB176
   101000 CASH                                  14,020.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00      14,020.00
7467  MT Law Enforcement Academy (MLEA)
   101000 CASH                                  13,899.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00      13,899.00
7468  Public Defender Fee
   101000 CASH                                   1,775.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00       1,775.00
7469  City Court - Judge Brandis
   101000 CASH                                  20,068.95         812.00           0.00           0.00           0.00      20,880.95
7910  Payroll Fund
   101000 CASH                                  37,982.98           0.00     171,416.72     209,921.00           0.00        -521.30
7930  Claims Fund
   101000 CASH                                   5,599.86           0.00     184,823.16     180,366.64           0.00      10,056.38

                                    Totals   4,652,234.63     459,946.02     356,982.54     625,927.72     356,982.54   4,486,252.93

*** Transfers In and Transfers Out columns should match. There are a couple exceptions to this: 1) Canceled Electronic Checks and
2) Payroll Journal Vouchers that include local deductions set up with receipt accounting. Please see cash reconciliation procedure
in manual or call for more details.



























































































 

January 29, 2014 

Mr. David S. Stelling 
Federal Aviation Administration  
Northwest Mountain Region, Airports Division  
Helena Airports District Office  
2725 Skyway Drive, Suite 2  
Helena, Montana 59602  
 
Dear Mr. Stelling, 

The Town of West Yellowstone is hereby responding to the public comment notice on the Federal 
Register Vol. 79, No. 18, “Notice of Request to Release Deed Restrictions at the Yellowstone Airport, 
West Yellowstone, Montana.”  

The Town of West Yellowstone is proud of its partnership history with the Yellowstone Airport and is 
pleased to hear of the Montana Department of Transportation’s request to release deed restrictions at 
the airport.  The Town understands that that the Montana Department of Transportation is requesting 
release from the following deed restrictions: 

a. Deed Restriction 1 – Release the airport from the restriction that the land must be used for 
airport development and allow potential non-airport development to generate revenue for 
airport operations and maintenance. 
 

b. Deed Restriction 6 – Release the airport from the requirement that the US Departments of 
Agriculture and Interior may use the airport at no charge in order to maintain financial 
viability. 

 
c. Deed Restriction 7 – Release the airport from the restriction that no commercial overnight 

facilities (hotels, motels) be constructed on the property. 
 
d. Deed Restriction 8 – Release the airport from the restriction that commercial advertising 

signs are prohibited within the airport access road are 

Eliminating these restrictions will allow Yellowstone Airport to pursue additional revenue options for 
maintaining and operating the airport which serves our community.  The Town is in full support of this 
request.   

The Town of West Yellowstone is delighted to hear the airport will have more economic opportunities 
and urge your support of this request to improve the only commercial air service to our region.   

Sincerely, 

 

Brad Schmier 
Mayor 







Town of West Yellowstone- 
West Yellowstone Chamber of Commerce 

 
Lease of Public Property 

     (Groomer Building) 
 
 THIS LEASE made this 18th day of February, 2014, by and between the TOWN OF 
WEST YELLOWSTONE, a Municipal Corporation duly chartered under the laws of the State 
of Montana, hereinafter referred to a “Lessor”, and the WEST YELLOWSTONE CHAMBER 
OF COMMERCE, a Montana Not-For-Profit Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Lessee”; 
 

RECITALS: 
 
 Lessor desires to lease to the Lessee and Lessee desires to lease from the Lessor that 
certain real property described under the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth as follows, to 
wit: 
 

1. REAL ESTATE DESCRIPTION: 
 
 The property to be leased by the Lessee from the Lessor is more specifically 
described as within the following boundaries and as shown on the attached Exhibit A and more 
commonly referred to as the Groomer Building, the (“Demised Premises”). 

 
 

2. TERMS OF LEASE: 
 
 The term of this Lease shall be five (5) years from the date of signature.  At that 

time, this Lease may be renewed for a term of up to five (5) additional years at expiration, 
provided that the Lessee shall give the Lessor at least 60 days’ notice in writing of the desire to 
renew this Lease for a like term and provided further that at the time of renewal the Lessor and 
Lessee may negotiate the terms and conditions of the lease, including but not limited rent, use 
and maintenance of the Demised Premises.   

 
3. RENT: 
 
 The Lessee shall pay FIFTY and NO/100 Dollars ($50.00) each year as rent, 

payable on or before April 1, 2014 and on or before December 31 of each year of the term of this 
Lease thereafter. 

 
4. USE: 
 
 The Lessee shall use the Demised Premises for use by the Snowmobile Grooming 

Committee.  The Lessor, in writing, shall specifically approve any change in use from that stated 
herein prior to the change.  Lessee shall make its request for a change of use to the Lessor in 
writing at least 60 days prior to any proposed change. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



5. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC AUTHORITIES: 
 
 Lessee, at the Lessee’s cost, shall promptly comply with all requirements of all 

municipal, state and federal laws now in force or which may hereafter be enforced pertaining to 
the Lessee’s use of the Demised Premises. 

 
6. INDEMNITY: 
 
 Lessee assumes all risk of injury or damages to persons or property in and about 

the Demised Premises and shall hold Lessor harmless therefrom, and indemnify Lessor against 
any claim for damage or injury to persons or property resulting from the use of the Demised 
Premises by the Lessee or the operation of the Lessee’s facility on the Demised Premises.  This 
indemnification shall not be construed to protect the Lessor against the consequences of 
negligent or intentional acts by the Lessor or any agent of the Lessor. 

 
7. INSURANCE: 
 

             (1) Liability Insurance 
 
Lessee shall hold Lessor free and harmless for all claims, damages, suits, 

demands or causes of action resulting from injuries to persons of property and arising 
therefrom or out of the use, occupancy, or condition of the Demised Premises and 
leasehold improvements, and shall carry, maintain and deposit proof with the Lessor of 
public liability insurance in such form and with such companies as shall be reasonably 
satisfactory to Lessor, naming or insuring the Lessor, as Lessor’s interest may appear, 
against liability for personal or property damages caused or occurring on the Demised 
Premises or by Lessee, its agents, servants, employees or business invitees.  Lessee shall 
furnish Lessor with certificates evidencing all of the foregoing insurance.  The Lessee 
shall continue to maintain such public liability insurance while tenant remains in 
possession of the leased property in limits no less than $2,000,000 per accident and 
$1,000,000 per person. 
 
(2) Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance 
 

Lessee shall maintain fire and extended coverage insurance upon the Demised 
Premises and leasehold improvements and Lessee shall maintain insurance upon any 
contents, property or leasehold improvements owned or claimed by it. 
 
8. LESSEE’S CONSTRUCTION: 
 
 Lessee may engage in any construction, alteration, or additions to the Demised 

Premises and make any agreement or contract therefore, but only after obtaining Lessor’s written 
approval.  Consent for Lessee’s construction shall not be unreasonably withheld by the Lessor.  
Any improvements or fixtures constructed on the Demised Premises shall become the property 
of the Lessor at the end of this Lease. 

 
 
 
 
 

 2 



9. REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE; EXPLOSIVES AND FLAMMABLES: 
 
 Lessee shall during the term of this Lease, at the Lessee’s expense, keep the 

Demised Premises in good repair, including the roof, structure, exterior, plumbing, wiring, 
fixtures, landscaping and ground maintenance. It is further agreed that no gunpowder, gasoline, 
dynamite, or other explosives or inflammable material shall be stored or kept upon the Demised 
Premises.  Nothing herein contained, however, shall prevent the storage of oil or gasoline upon 
the Demised Premises when the purpose for which the same are to be used, as indicated above, 
contemplates such storage; nor the storage of oil or gasoline where same are used by the Lessee 
for fuel in the business carried on by the Lessee on the leased premises, and are stored in 
quantities reasonable for such purposes; PROVIDED, however, that in all of said excepted cases, 
the Lessee shall strictly comply with all statutory and municipal regulations relating to the 
storage of such commodities. 

  
 
10. RIGHT OF WAY ACCESS AND COVERAGE REQUIREMENT: 
 
 Any leasehold improvements located on the Demised Premises by the Lessee 

must leave access on right of way sufficient to allow maintenance of utilities located on and 
adjacent to the leased property.  No structure that covers more than 50% of the right of way area 
may be erected on the Demised Premises and no leasehold improvement shall be placed within 
15 feet of the south boundary of the Demised Premises. 

 Access to and through the Demised Premises shall be maintained and allowed for 
representatives of the Town, adjacent property owners and the general public for the duration of 
the lease. 

 
11. UTILITIES: 
 
 Lessee shall during the term of this Lease, at the Lessee’s expense, cover the cost 

of all utility services to the Demised Premises and leasehold improvements, including but not 
limited to electricity and gas.  Lessor shall pay for sewer and water services. 

 
12. SIGNS ON PREMISES: 
 
 Lessee shall have the right to erect, affix or display on the exterior of the 

leasehold improvement a single sign designating the name of the building.  The Lessee may not 
erect any additional signs outside of the building except those associated with a particular event.  
Such signs may be placed on the Demised Premises for no longer than two weeks prior to the 
given event and must be removed immediately upon conclusion of the event.  The Lessee may 
erect two (2) lock boxes on the property to collect trail fees and solicit donations for building 
maintenance.  The Lessee may also erect a plaque on the interior of the building to recognize 
donors to the building construction and maintenance.   

 Nothing in the foregoing paragraph shall exclude reasonable direction and 
information signs, including trail maps and trail user information.  Such direction and 
information signs may not include sponsorship or other information that could be construed as 
advertising for or advocacy of a particular business or product.   

 All signs, notices, plaques, and similar items are subject to the approval of Lessor 
and Lessee agrees that any unapproved signs shall be immediately removed. 

 
 

 3 



13. ASSESSMENTS AND TAXES: 
 
 Lessee shall pay all taxes and assessments levied against the personal property 

belonging to it located on the Demised Premises. 
 
14. RIGHTS ON DEFAULT: 
 
 Lessee shall be in default under this Lease if any one or more of the following 

events shall occur: 
 
(1) If Lessee shall default in the payment of rent or the payment of any other money 
required to be paid by the Lessee, when the same shall become due, and such default 
shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days following written notice, given by Lessor to 
Lessee after the due date of such payment and specifying such default; or 
 
(2)  If Lessee shall default in the performance of any other duty of Lessee under this 
Lease or if the Lessee shall commit waste or allow a nuisance to exist on the Demised 
Premises, and default shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days following written 
notice given after such default, unless within said thirty (30) days Lessee shall cure such 
default, and shall thereafter continue to use reasonable diligence in curing the same; or 
 
(3) Under the following circumstances: 

a. if the Lessee vacates or abandons the Demised Premises for more than 
thirty (30) days; or  

b. if the Lessee shall be adjudicated a bankrupt; or   
c. if a petition by or against Lessee for reorganization or adjustment or 

arrangement under any bankruptcy statute shall be approved, or  
d. if a receiver or keeper of the Demised Premises or any leasehold 

improvements thereon or income therefrom be appointed in any 
proceeding by or against  Lessee, and not be discharged within thirty (30) 
days, or  

e. if the Lessee makes a general assignment of property for the benefits of its 
creditors;  

A default on the part of the Lessee shall be deemed to exist under this Lease and 
this Lease may be terminated at the option of the Lessor in which event the 
Lessee shall vacate the Demised Premises and Lessor shall also have all remedies 
to which Lessor is entitled under applicable Montana Law.   
 

 Should Lessor breach any of the provisions of this Lease, Lessee shall give Lessor 
thirty (30) days notice during which Lessor may cure the default, and should Lessor fail to do so, 
Lessee may cancel this Lease upon at least thirty (30) days notice. 

 
15. WAIVER: 
 
 No waiver of any breach of any term, covenant or condition of this Lease shall be 

construed to be a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other term, 
covenant or condition.  All covenants on the part of the Lessor and Lessee are hereby made 
conditions. 

 
 

 4 



16. SERVICE OF NOTICE: 
 
 Any notice required to be given by one party to the other shall be in writing and 

may be served in person or served by certified mail, postage prepaid, through the United States 
Postal Service and addressed to the respective parties at the following addresses on mailing: 

 
LESSEE LESSOR 

 
West Yellowstone Chamber of Commerce Town of West Yellowstone 
Box 458 Box 1570 
West Yellowstone MT 59758 West Yellowstone MT 59758 

 
17. LESSOR-LESSEE RELATIONSHIP: 
 
 The relationship between the parties hereto is that of Lessor and Lessee and 

nothing herein contained shall be construed or interpreted so as to make their relationship 
otherwise, or give the Lessee any ownership rights to the Demised Premises. 

 
18. CONDITION OF PROPERTY: 
 
 The Lessee agrees to accept the Demised Premises in an “AS IS” condition. 
 
19. DESTRUCTION OF LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS: 
 
 If the leasehold improvements shall be damaged by fire, explosion, windstorm or 

any other casualty, then the Lessee may use the insurance proceeds to repair such damage and 
put the leasehold improvements in good and tenantable condition as rapidly as reasonably 
possible.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this paragraph to the contrary, if more than 
fifty percent (50%) of the insured value of the Demised Premises and leasehold improvements is 
destroyed, the Lessee may elect to terminate the lease.  Termination of the Lease requires written 
notice to the Lessor within ninety (90) days after such damage occurs.  If the Lease is terminated, 
it shall be the responsibility of the Lessee to complete any necessary repairs, reconstruction, 
clean up or removal of debris or any associated expenses in the event of the destruction of the 
improvements to the Demised Premises. If Lessee fails to complete such repairs, the Lessor shall 
complete the necessary repairs and shall be entitled to recover from the Lessee all costs. 

 
20. TERMINATION AND CANCELLATION OF LEASE: 
 
 The Lessor may cancel the lease in the event that: 

A. The Town Council determines that public necessity or public 
interest requires the termination of the lease; or 

B. A court of law determines that the lease is null and void. 
 
21. OWNERSHIP OF LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS IN EVENT OF 

DEFAULT, CANCELLATION OR LEASE TERMINATION: 
 
 In the event of default, cancellation, termination or expiration of lease, ownership 

of all leasehold improvements upon the Demised Premises shall revert to the Lessor. 
 
 

 5 



22. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: 
 

 This Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective parties, their 
successors and assigns.  No assignment or sublet or transfer of this lease may be made without 
the prior written consent of Lessor, such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Consent 
by Lessor to one or more assignments or subletting shall not operate as a waiver of Lessor’s 
rights as to any subsequent assignments and subletting.  In the event Lessee shall sublet any 
portion of the Demised Premises, the Lessee shall at all times remain fully responsible and 
liable for the payment of the rent and for compliance with all of its other obligations under this 
Lease. 
 
In the event of the transfer and assignment by Lessor of its interest in this Lease and in the 
Demised Premises to a person expressly assuming Lessor’s obligations under this Lease, Lessor 
shall thereby be released from any future obligations or duties hereunder, and Lessee agrees to 
look solely to such successor in interest of the Lessor for performance of such future obligations 
and duties.   
 
Lessee shall not mortgage, pledge or otherwise encumber its interest in this Lease or in the 
Demised Premises, without the prior written consent of Lessor. 
 

23. ALL AGREEMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN: 
 
 This Lease contains all of the agreements of the parties relating to the subject 

matter and it supersedes and cancels all prior written and oral agreements between them with 
reference to the real property referenced in paragraph 1 above. 

 
24. ATTORNEY’S FEES: 
 
 In the event any suit is brought by either party against the other under this Lease, 

the successful party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fee and all costs, including but not 
limited to expert witness fees, regardless if the same were used at trial. 

 
25. SEVERABILITY: 
 

 The laws of the State of Montana shall govern the interpretation, validity, performance, 
and enforcement of this Lease.  If any provision of this Lease should be held invalid or 
unenforceable, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Lease shall not 
be affected thereby. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 6 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seas as of 
the day and year first written. 
 LESSOR: 

 
 TOWN OF WEST YELLOWSTONE 
  

 
 

 Brad Schmier, Mayor 
  

LESSEE 
 

 WEST YELLOWSTONE CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE 

  
 
 

 Marysue Costello, Executive Director 
 

 7 







Town of West Yellowstone 
West Yellowstone Chamber of Commerce 

 
Lease of Public Property 

 
 THIS LEASE made this 18th day of February, 2014, by and between the TOWN OF 
WEST YELLOWSTONE, a Municipal Corporation duly chartered under the laws of the State 
of Montana, hereinafter referred to a “Lessor”, and the WEST YELLOWSTONE CHAMBER 
OF COMMERCE, a Montana Not-For-Profit Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Lessee”; 
 

RECITALS: 
 
 Lessor desires to lease to the Lessee and Lessee desires to lease from the Lessor that 
certain real property described under the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth as follows, to 
wit: 
 

1. REAL ESTATE DESCRIPTION: 
 
             The property to be leased by the Lessee from the Lessor is more specifically described as 
within the following boundaries and as shown on the attached Exhibit A and commonly referred 
to as the Trail Head, the (“Demised Premises”): 
 

2. TERMS OF LEASE: 
 
The term of this Lease shall be ten (10) years from the date of signature.  At that time, 

this Lease may be renewed for a term of up to ten (10) additional years at expiration, provided 
that the Lessee shall give the Lessor at least 60 days’ notice in writing of the desire to renew this 
Lease for a like term and provided further that at the time of renewal the Lessor and Lessee may 
negotiate the terms and conditions of the lease, including but not limited rent, use and 
maintenance of the Demised Premises.   

 
3. RENT: 
 
The Lessee shall pay One Hundred ($100.00) and no/100ths each year as rent, payable on 

or before April 1, 2014 and on or before December 31 of each year of the term of this Lease 
thereafter. 

 



4. USE: 
 
The Lessee shall use the Demised Premises subject to this Lease for  a warming hut and 

rest room facilities.  The Lessor, in writing, shall specifically approve any change in use from 
that stated herein prior to the change.  Lessee shall make its request for a change of use to the 
Lessor in writing at least 60 days prior to any proposed change. 

 
5. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC AUTHORITIES: 
 
Lessee, at the Lessee’s cost, shall promptly comply with all requirements of all 

municipal, state and federal laws now in force or which may hereafter be enforced pertaining to 
the Lessee’s use of the Demised Premises. 

 
6. INDEMNITY: 
 
Lessee assumes all risk of injury or damages to persons or property in and about the 

Demised Premises and shall hold Lessor harmless therefrom, and indemnify Lessor against any 
claim for damage or injury to persons or property resulting from the use of the Demised Premises 
by the Lessee or the operation of the Lessee’s facility on the Demised Premises.  This 
indemnification shall not be construed to protect the Lessor against the consequences of 
negligent or intentional acts by the Lessor or any agent of the Lessor. 

 
7. INSURANCE: 
 

             (1) Liability Insurance 
 
Lessee shall hold Lessor free and harmless for all claims, damages, suits, 

demands or causes of action resulting from injuries to persons of property and arising 
therefrom or out of the use, occupancy, or condition of the Demised Premises and 
leasehold improvements, and shall carry, maintain and deposit proof with the Lessor of 
public liability insurance in such form and with such companies as shall be reasonably 
satisfactory to Lessor, naming or insuring the Lessor, as Lessor’s interest may appear, 
against liability for personal or property damages caused or occurring on the Demised 
Premises or by Lessee, its agents, servants, employees or business invitees.  Lessee shall 
furnish Lessor with certificates evidencing all of the foregoing insurance.  The Lessee 
shall continue to maintain such public liability insurance while tenant remains in 
possession of the leased property in limits no less than $2,000,000 per accident and 
$1,000,000 per person. 
 
(2) Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance 
 

Lessee shall maintain fire and extended coverage insurance upon the Demised 
Premises and leasehold improvements and Lessee shall maintain insurance upon any 
contents, property or leasehold improvements owned or claimed by it. 
 

 2 



8. LESSEE’S CONSTRUCTION: 
 
Lessee may engage in any construction, alteration, or additions to the Demised Premises 

and make any agreement or contract therefore, but only after obtaining Lessor’s written 
approval.  Consent for Lessee’s construction shall not be unreasonably withheld by the Lessor. 

 
9. REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE: 
 
Lessee shall during the term of this Lease, at the Lessee’s expense, keep the Demised 

Premises in good repair, including the roof, structure, exterior, plumbing, wiring, fixtures, 
landscaping and ground maintenance, except that the Lessor shall be responsible for restroom 
cleaning and maintenance, including cleaning supplies and paper goods.  The agreement on 
restroom cleaning and maintenance shall be subject to review and revision on December 31, 
2019 and may be renewed for up to five years thereafter.   

 
10. RIGHT OF WAY ACCESS AND COVERAGE REQUIREMENT: 
 
Any leasehold improvements located on the Demised Premises by the Lessee must leave 

access on right of way sufficient to allow maintenance of utilities located on and adjacent to the 
Demised Premises.  No structure that covers more than 50% of the right of way area may be 
erected on the Demised Premises and no leasehold improvement shall be placed within 15 feet of 
the south boundary of the Demised Premises. 

 Access to and through the Demised Premises shall be maintained and allowed for 
representatives of the Town, adjacent property owners and the general public for the duration of 
the lease. 

 
11. UTILITIES: 
 
Lessee shall during the term of this Lease, at the Lessee’s expense, cover the cost of all 

utility services to the Demised Premises and leasehold improvements, including but not limited 
to electricity and gas.  Lessor shall pay for sewer and water services. 

 
12. SIGNS ON PREMISES: 
 
Lessee shall have the right to erect, affix or display on the exterior of the leasehold 

improvement a single sign designating the name of the building.  The Lessee may not erect any 
additional signs outside of the building except those associated with a particular event.  Such 
signs may be placed on the Demised Premises for no longer than two weeks prior to the given 
event and must be removed immediately upon conclusion of the event.  The Lessee may erect 
two (2) lock boxes on the Demised Premises to collect trail fees and solicit donations for 
building maintenance.  The Lessee may also erect a plaque on the interior of the building to 
recognize donors to the building construction and maintenance.   

Nothing in the foregoing paragraph shall exclude reasonable direction and information 
signs, including trail maps and trail user information.  Such direction and information signs may 
not include sponsorship or other information that could be construed as advertising for or 
advocacy of a particular business or product.   

All signs, notices, plaques, and similar items are subject to the approval of Lessor and 
Lessee agrees that any unapproved signs shall be immediately removed. 

 3 



13. SCHEDULING:  
 
Lessee shall schedule events in the building and shall establish and collect fees for 

events.  Events sponsored by the Lessor shall be exempted from fees unless both parties agree to 
allow for fee collection. 

 
14. ASSESSMENTS AND TAXES: 
 
Lessee shall pay all taxes and assessments levied against the personal property belonging 

to it located on the Demised Premises. 
 
15. RIGHTS ON DEFAULT: 
 
Lessee shall be in default under this Lease if any one or more of the following events 

shall occur: 
 
(1) If Lessee shall default in the payment of rent or the payment of any other money 
required to be paid by the Lessee, when the same shall become due, and such default 
shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days following written notice, given by Lessor to 
Lessee after the due date of such payment and specifying such default; or 
 
(2)  If Lessee shall default in the performance of any other duty of Lessee under this 
Lease or if the Lessee shall commit waste or allow a nuisance to exist on the Demised 
Premises, and default shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days following written 
notice given after such default, unless within said thirty (30) days Lessee shall cure such 
default, and shall thereafter continue to use reasonable diligence in curing the same; or 
 
(3) Under the following circumstances: 

a. if the Lessee vacates or abandons the Demised Premises for more than 
thirty (30) days; or  

b. if the Lessee shall be adjudicated a bankrupt; or   
c. if a petition by or against Lessee for reorganization or adjustment or 

arrangement under any bankruptcy statute shall be approved, or  
d. if a receiver or keeper of the Demised Premises or any leasehold 

improvements thereon or income therefrom be appointed in any 
proceeding by or against  Lessee, and not be discharged within thirty (30) 
days, or  

e. if the Lessee makes a general assignment of Demised Premises for the 
benefits of its creditors;  

 
A default on the part of the Lessee shall be deemed to exist under this Lease and 
this Lease may be terminated at the option of the Lessor in which event the 
Lessee shall immediately vacate the Demised Premises and Lessor shall also have 
all remedies to which Lessor is entitled under applicable Montana Law.   
 

Should Lessor breach any of the provisions of this Lease, Lessee shall give Lessor thirty 
(30) days notice during which Lessor may cure the default, and should Lessor fail to do so, 
Lessee may cancel this Lease upon at least thirty (30) days notice. 

 
 

 4 



 
16. WAIVER: 
 
No waiver of any breach of any term, covenant or condition of this Lease shall be 

construed to be a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other term, 
covenant or condition.  All covenants on the part of the Lessor and Lessee are hereby made 
conditions. 

 
17. SERVICE OF NOTICE: 
 
Any notice required to be given by one party to the other shall be in writing and may be 

served in person or served by certified mail, postage prepaid, through the United States Postal 
Service and addressed to the respective parties at the following addresses on mailing: 

 
LESSEE LESSOR 

 
West Yellowstone Chamber of Commerce Town of West Yellowstone 
Box 458 Box 1570 
West Yellowstone MT 59758 West Yellowstone MT 59758 

 
18. LESSOR-LESSEE RELATIONSHIP: 
 
The relationship between the parties hereto is that of Lessor and Lessee and nothing 

herein contained shall be construed or interpreted so as to make their relationship otherwise, or 
give the Lessee any ownership rights to the Demised Premises. 

 
19. CONDITION OF PROPERTY: 
 
The Lessee agrees to accept the Demised Premises in an “AS IS” condition. 
 
20. DESTRUCTION OF LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS: 
 
If the leasehold improvements shall be damaged by fire, explosion, windstorm or any 

other casualty, then the Lessee may use the insurance proceeds to repair such damage and put the 
leasehold improvements in good and tenantable condition as rapidly as reasonably possible.  
Notwithstanding any other provisions of this paragraph to the contrary, if more than fifty percent 
(50%) of the insured value of Demised Premises and leasehold improvements is destroyed, the 
Lessee may elect to terminate the lease.  Termination of the Lease requires written notice to the 
Lessor within ninety (90) days after such damage occurs.  If the Lease is terminated, it shall be 
the responsibility of the Lessee to complete any necessary repairs, reconstruction, clean up or 
removal of debris or any associated expenses in the event of the destruction of the improvements 
to the Demised Premises. If Lessee fails to complete such repairs, the Lessor shall complete the 
necessary repairs, reconstruction, etc., and shall be entitled to recover from the Lessee all costs. 

 5 



21. TERMINATION AND CANCELLATION OF LEASE: 
 
The Lessor may cancel the lease in the event that: 

A. The Town Council determines that public necessity or public 
interest requires the termination of the lease; or 

B. A court of law determines that the lease is null and void. 
 
22. OWNERSHIP OF LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS IN EVENT OF 

DEFAULT, CANCELLATION OR LEASE TERMINATION : 
 
In the event of default, cancellation, termination or expiration of lease, ownership of all 

leasehold improvements shall revert to the Lessor. 
 
23. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: 
 

 This Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective parties, their 
successors and assigns.  No assignment or sublet or transfer of this lease may be made without 
the prior written consent of Lessor, such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Consent 
by Lessor to one or more assignments or subletting shall not operate as a waiver of Lessor’s 
rights as to any subsequent assignments and subletting.  In the event Lessee shall sublet any 
portion of the Demised Premises, the Lessee shall at all times remain fully responsible and 
liable for the payment of the rent and for compliance with all of its other obligations under this 
Lease. 
 
In the event of the transfer and assignment by Lessor of its interest in this Lease and in the 
Demised Premises to a person expressly assuming Lessor’s obligations under this Lease, Lessor 
shall thereby be released from any future obligations or duties hereunder, and Lessee agrees to 
look solely to such successor in interest of the Lessor for performance of such future obligations 
and duties.   
 
Lessee shall not mortgage, pledge or otherwise encumber its interest in this Lease or in the 
Demised Premises, without the prior written consent of Lessor. 
 

 
24. ALL AGREEMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN: 
 
This Lease contains all of the agreements of the parties relating to the subject matter and 

it supersedes and cancels all prior written and oral agreements between them with reference to 
the Demised Premises referenced in paragraph 1 above. 

 
25. ATTORNEY’S FEES: 
 
In the event any suit is brought by either party against the other under this Lease, the 

successful party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fee and all costs, including but not 
limited to expert witness fees, regardless if the same were used at trial. 

 
26. SEVERABILITY: 
 

 The laws of the State of Montana shall govern the interpretation, validity, performance, 
and enforcement of this Lease.  If any provision of this Lease should be held invalid or 

 6 



unenforceable, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Lease shall not 
be affected thereby. 

  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seas as of 

the day and year first written. 
 LESSOR: 

 
 TOWN OF WEST YELLOWSTONE 
  

 
 

 Brad Schmier, Mayor 
  

LESSEE 
 

 WEST YELLOWSTONE CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE 

  
 
 

 Marysue Costello, Executive Director 
 

 7 





West Yellowstone Chamber of Commerce 
and Snowmobile Events Committee  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
PO Box 458 

West Yellowstone, Montana  59758 

406-646-7701 

     destinationyellowstone.com 
 

 
 
 

 
February 13, 2014 
 
Town Council  
Town of West Yellowstone 
PO Box 1570 
West Yellowstone,  MT  59758 
 
Dear Council, 
 
The West Yellowstone Chamber of Commerce is organized to advance the general welfare 
and prosperity of the West Yellowstone area so that its citizens and all areas of its business 
community shall prosper.  All necessary means of promotion shall be provided and particular 
attention and emphasis shall be given to economic, civic, commercial, cultural, industrial and 
educational interests of the area.  
 
Separate committees operate under the Chamber of Commerce to accomplish specific goals 
and objectives.  One such committee is the Snowmobile Events Committee.  Its mission is to 
create and host snowmobile related events and activities enhancing and sustaining our winter 
economy through successful events. 
 
The Town of West Yellowstone, Chamber of Commerce and the Snowmobile Events 
Committee have worked closely and effectively together for over 23 years to facilitate the 
logistics and promotion of many, many events.  The most notable of these events is the Annual 
West Yellowstone World Snowmobile EXPO.   
 
Until this past year, the committee has operated with the understanding that as a not-for-profit, 
there was not a resort tax liability on tickets sold to visitors for attendance to EXPO. We have 
always worked with the town to be sure that the individual vendors who sell merchandise do 
collect, report, and pay their appropriate resort taxes.   
 
Last year the issue of resort tax collection on entry tickets at the EXPO tent was brought into 
question by the town staff and we met with them.  At that time we believed that there was no 
alternative even though our prices had already been established.  Unfortunately, since that 
meeting other concerns have pushed the issue from our minds until we were again reminded 
of it by the Town office.  We then learned that since we are an IRS not-for-profit entity under 
501(c)(6) designation and not the more common 501(c)(3) designation, the fundraising events,  
  



West Yellowstone Chamber of Commerce 
and Snowmobile Events Committee  Page 2 of 2 
 

such as EXPO, that we have sponsored and promoted are not exempt from the resort tax 
under Policy No. 7: A Policy for Determining Exempt Status Regarding the Collection of 
the Resort Tax.   
   
For an explanation and clarification, the West Yellowstone Chamber of Commerce operates 
under the Internal Revenue Code (c)(6) Business Leagues.  This statute provides for 
exemption of business leagues, chambers of commerce, real estate boards, and boards of 
trade, which are not organized for profit and no part of the net earnings of which inures to the 
benefit of any private shareholder or individual.  Chambers of commerce and boards of trade 
are organizations of the same general type as business leagues.  They direct their efforts at 
promoting the common economic interests of all commercial enterprises in a trade or 
community. 
 
The West Yellowstone Snowmobile EXPO is organized for the intent to bring people to West 
Yellowstone at the end of our winter season to help the businesses with rooms, meals, and 
retail sales.  These all collect resort taxes for the benefit of the community, as well as 
accommodation taxes and TBID.   
 
We believe that the original intent of Policy No. 7 was to exempt resort tax collections on not-
for-profit organizations in our community, but that the specific language unintentionally 
excluded the West Yellowstone Chamber of Commerce. 
 
With this in mind, the West Yellowstone Chamber of Commerce and the Snowmobile Events 
Committee are asking the Town Council to please, amend Policy No. 7 to include the West 
Yellowstone Chamber of Commerce as a not-for-profit IRC 501(c)(6) under paragraph 2 
where it states, “Fund raising events such as auctions or sales held by 501(c)(3) organizations 
shall be exempt from resort tax collections.”   
 
We appreciate your time and efforts in serving our community and the close working 
relationship we share in our efforts to bolster the economy and well-being of our town. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Cynthia Knapp, President    Travis Watt, Chair, Snowmobile Events 
 

 













Town of West Yellowstone 
Boards & Committee Appointments 

February 2014 
 

 
Airport Advisory Board 
Bill Howell 
Glen Loomis  
Jerry Schmier 
Mike Polkowske 
Dennis LaFever 
Byrns Fagerburg 
 
Cemetery Board of Trustees 
Mayor  
Ken Davis 
Spring Binfet 
Rocky Hermanson 
Vacancy 
 
CDBG/Revolving Loan Fund 
Operations Manager-Becky Guay 
Finance Director- Lanie Gospodarek 
Kyle Goltz-Business Rep 
Maggie Anderson-FSB 
Vacancy-YBB 
Vacancy-TC 
 
Clothing Bank Ad Hoc Committee 
Corinne Fagerburg 
Doug Buskirk 
Grace McCoy 
Brian McCoy 
Doc Stewart 
Bob Everest 
Kathi Arnado (Employee) 
Salle Engelhardt 
Jerry Johnson (Town Council) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Downtown Improvement District 
Brad Schmier, (Council) 
Tom Cherhoniak 
Kristy Coffin 
Betty Richey 
Kellie Sanders 
Kim Howell 
Don Perry 
Vacancy 
 
Healthcare Services Board 
Tom Cherhoniak, (Council) 
Kyle Goltz 
Rachel Burden 
John Costello 
Jessica McCrossin 
 
Library Board of Trustees 
Yessika Vega 
SJ Shepherd 
Rocky Hermanson 
Patrick Brennan 
Lacey Trowbridge 
Bruce McPherson, Librarian 
 
MAP Advisory Board 
Jerry Johnson, (Chair & Council) 
Gloria Evans 
Marysue Costello 
Kay Matthews 
Barbara Klesel 
Kim Howell 
John Greve 
 
Parks & Rec Advisory Board 
Pierre Martineau, (Council) 
Kevin Flanagan 
Greg Forsythe 
April Heesacker 
Vickie Barta-Chair 
 
 



 
Planning  
Pierre Martineau (Council) 
Cole Parker (Gall Co. Appt) 
Public Services Supt (Employee) 
Bill Howell (in-town) 
Tim Daley (in-town) 
Kim Howell (out of town) 
Vacancy (out of town) 
 
Police Commission 
Doc DeTonancour  
Bill Howell  
Charles Gibson 
 
Sign Review & Appeals Board 
Doc Stewart (Council) 
Randy Roberson 
Jason Howell 
Jeremy Roberson 
1 Vacancy 
 
Snow Arbitration Board 
Brad Schmier, (Council) 
Tim Whitman 
Chris Kahur 
6 Vacancies 
Public Services Supt. (ex-officio) 
 
TBID Board of Directors 
Jeff Schoenhard 
Jerry Johnson 
Alicia Thompson 
Jeremy Roberson 
John Stallings 
Brock Kelley 
Michael Lundberg 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
911 Advisory Board 
Gallatin County Sheriff Representative 
WY Police Representative 
Operations Manager 
YNP Representative 
USFS Representative 
MT Highway Patrol  
Hebgen Basin Fire Representative 
MDOT Representative 
MT FWP Representative 
WY Trail Groomers Representative 
Non law enforcement user (wrecker serv) 
John Costello (Town Council) 
Member of General Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER BOARDS 
 
Community Assessment Action Team 
Becky Guay, Operations Manager 
 
Gallatin County Regional Parks Bd 
Pierre Martineau (Council) 
 
Solid Waste District Board 
James Patterson, Public Services Supt. 
 





 
 
 
 
 
 
February 10, 2014 
 
«Title» «First» «Last» 
«Company_Name» 
«Address_Line_1» 
«City», «ST»  «ZIP» 
 
Dear «Title» «Last»: 
 
The Town Council of the Town of West Yellowstone recently adopted the attached resolution 
establishing a 911 Advisory Board.  «Company_Name» utilize the services provided by the West 
Yellowstone 911/Dispatch Center; therefore, you (or your representative) are cordially invited to be a 
member of the 911 Advisory Board. 
 
Please let me know if you or a representative will participate on this Board by February 28, 2014.  We 
will need the name, address, phone number and email address for the person that will represent 
«Company_Name» on the 911 Advisory Board.  We anticipate scheduling a meeting of the Board in early 
March to begin work on establishing by-laws for adoption by the Town Council, through which the Board 
will be governed. 
 
We appreciate your interest in helping the Town of West Yellowstone improve the operations of its 
911/Dispatch Center and look forward to working with you and «Company_Name» in the future. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Rebecca C. Guay 
Operations Manager 



 
 
February 10, 2014 
  
Montana Fish, Wildlife and Parks 
Recreational Trails Program 
Parks Division 
1420 East 6th Avenue 
PO Box 200701 
Helena, MT 59620 
  
To Whom It May Concern: 
  
I am writing to express the Town of West Yellowstone’s support for the West 
Yellowstone Ski Education Foundation's 2014 Recreational Trails Program (RTP) grant 
application.  The Rendezvous Ski Trails are a vital part of the regional and national 
Nordic skiing community for training and racing.  A RTP grant will help to guarantee the 
upkeep and maintenance of this important recreational resource. 
  
The Rendezvous Ski Trails are known for a lengthy cross country ski season, well 
maintained trails, and expertly groomed tracks during the winter months.  They remain 
accessible for a wide variety of user groups throughout the year.  From the beginning of 
the cross country ski season at the Yellowstone Ski Festival in November to late season 
skiing in April, we know we can count on professionally maintained cross country ski 
trails in West Yellowstone.  Nordic skiers of all levels travel to Montana to ski on the 
Rendezvous Ski Trails and many return in the summer as runners, hikers, mountain 
bikers, and horseback riders.  Summer maintenance keeps the trails open to the public 
and provides a safe environment for a wide variety of activities. 
 
WYSEF's Cross Country Ski Trail Grooming and Maintenance Program is very 
important to the national cross country skiing community, regional athletes, and the 
Town of West Yellowstone.  The future of West Yellowstone's winter economy lies in 
the diversity of experiences that are offered to various recreational users.  RTP funding 
has and will continue to play a critical role in the quality of experience both locals and 
our many visitors enjoy on the Rendezvous Ski Trails.  We hope that you will fund 
WYSEF's efforts to the full level requested. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
 
  
Rebecca C. Guay 
Operations Manager 



 
 
 
 
 
 
February 6, 2014 
 
National Smokejumper Center 
PO Box 264 
West Yellowstone, Mt  59758 
 
Re:  Mountain Sky Guest Ranch Foundation 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
We are writing to express our enthusiastic support for the Yellowstone Nature 
Connection (YNC) and its application to obtain grant funding from the Mountain Sky 
Guest Ranch Foundation.   
 
The programs offered at the YNC appeal to the many visitors who stop in West 
Yellowstone seeking activities for their families, perhaps enticing them to stay another 
night or two in the area.  The programs provided at the Center are both fun and 
educational, providing visitors an opportunity to learn about and appreciate the ecology 
of the Greater Yellowstone area. 
 
Again, we whole-heartedly support the YNC’s grant application and look forward to 
working with them to provide these services to the visitors we all serve. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Rebecca C. Guay 
Operations Manager 
Town of West Yellowstone 
 


	Agenda
	Tuesday, February 18, 2014

	claims
	2.4.14 TC
	securities
	cash report
	FS PACKET
	POLICE COMM procedures
	Lift airport deed restriction ltr of support 20
	Fed Reg Airport DeedRestrictions
	WY Chamber Groomer Lease 2-2014
	GROOMER MAP
	Trailhead Bldg Land lease
	TRAILHEAD MAP
	Town RT exemption request
	chamber RT
	Boards Summary Feb 2014
	Healthcare Services Board
	MAP Advisory Board
	Parks & Rec Advisory Board
	Solid Waste District Board

	911 ANNOUNCE
	911 Board invite letter
	Letter_of_support_RTP_ski_2014
	Smokejumper center ltr of support 2-2014



